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          2                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: We have Council

          3  Member Robert Jackson on the phone from Manhattan,

          4  Council Member Helen Sears from Queens, Council

          5  Member Inez Dickens from Manhattan, Council Member

          6  Rosie Mendez from Manhattan, Council Member Vincent

          7  Gentile from Brooklyn, Council Member Eric Gioia

          8  from Queens, Council Member Jessica Lappin from

          9  Manhattan, Council Member Jimmy Oddo from Staten

         10  Island and Brooklyn, Council Member Albert Vann from

         11  Brooklyn, Council Member Leroy Comrie from Queens,

         12  and Council Member Alan Gerson from Manhattan.

         13                 Today we'll be considering a number

         14  of items, including a preconsidered Intro

         15  establishing the Retiree Health Benefits Trust Fund,

         16  Intro. 347, a local law establishing the Bayridge

         17  Fifth Avenue BID, a preconsidered resolution calling

         18  upon the State Legislature to adopt legislation,

         19  which would exempt the Health benefits from

         20  employees domestic partner, from City and State

         21  Income Tax, and four preconsidered resolutions

         22  establishing the interest rates for Fiscal Year '07,

         23  on the early and late payment of property taxes and

         24  water and sewer rents.

         25                 The Mayor in his Fiscal 2007
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          2  Preliminary Budget proposed the establishment of a

          3  Retiree Benefits Trust Fund for the exclusive

          4  purpose of funding the Health and Welfare Benefits

          5  of retired City employees and their dependents.

          6                 The rationale behind the creation of

          7  the trust is to give the City the ability to play

          8  certain surplus and potentially non-recurring funds

          9  and trusts for the purpose of irrevocably funding

         10  certain of the City's retirees' health and welfare

         11  benefit obligation.

         12                 In March of this year, the Council,

         13  agreeing with this goal, approved a budget

         14  modification appropriating $1 billion for such trust

         15  fund.

         16                 The purpose of today's legislation is

         17  to authorize the establishment of the trust fund and

         18  to ensure that it is an irrevocable trust.

         19                 The establishment of the trust fund

         20  was indeed the Mayor's brainchild, but this Council

         21  has made it better.

         22                 First, we ensure accountability by

         23  making the City's Comptroller responsible for

         24  auditing.

         25                 Second, we have made it more
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          2  transparent by getting the Administration to agree

          3  to a separate unit of appropriation.

          4                 And last, this legislation protects

          5  the trust fund from misuse by setting firm

          6  parameters to ensure that no one can play tricks

          7  with the money and providing for checks as the

          8  Comptroller's audit powers.

          9                 I believe we have taken a good idea

         10  and made it better, and I also want to note that the

         11  Council will be adding the first new unit of

         12  appropriation to the 2007 budget.

         13                 We'll also be considering a

         14  preconsidered resolution calling upon the State

         15  Legislature to adopt legislation which would exempt

         16  the health coverage an employer provides for an

         17  employee's domestic partner from State and local

         18  taxes.

         19                 Under current law, when an employer

         20  pays additional amounts so that an employee's

         21  domestic partner can be covered by a health

         22  insurance plan, that amount in excess of the amount

         23  paid to cover the employee is treated as part of the

         24  employee's gross income for federal, State and City

         25  purposes.
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          2                 In contrast, these benefits are tax

          3  exempt in the case of an employee's spouse

          4  independent. Without an exemption, employees who pay

          5  for their domestic partner's health insurance

          6  contribute approximately $370 in additional taxes to

          7  New York State and City.

          8                 To ameliorate these discriminatory

          9  effects, Assemblyman Daniel O'Donnell and Senator

         10  Tom Duane have sponsored legislation that would

         11  exempt these benefits from City and State tax. The

         12  resolution before us, which is sponsored by Council

         13  Member Mendez and myself, calls upon the State

         14  Legislature to act and adopt such legislation not

         15  only furthers the goal of equality between married

         16  couples and domestic partners, but also furthers the

         17  goal of making quality health care more accessible

         18  and affordable to more New Yorkers.

         19                 Today we'll also be conducting our

         20  first hearing on Intro. No. 347, the local law to

         21  establish the Bayridge Fifth Avenue BID in Brooklyn.

         22                 Resolution 339, adopted by this

         23  Committee on May 24th set today as a hearing date,

         24  so that we may hear all those who may be affected by

         25  the establishment of the BIDs who wish to speak.
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          2                 After we hear from all witnesses, we

          3  will adjourn the hearing for at least 30 days, which

          4  is a statutorily mandated time during property

          5  owners objecting to the establishment of a BID may

          6  file objections.

          7                 In the absence of significant

          8  objections, if the Committee and the Council can

          9  answer the following questions affirmatively, it may

         10  adopt a local law establishing the BID.

         11                 Question 1. Were all notices of

         12  hearings for all hearings required to be held

         13  published and mailed as required by law and

         14  otherwise sufficient?

         15                 2. Does all the real property within

         16  the District's boundaries benefit from the

         17  establishment of the district, except as otherwise

         18  provided by the law?

         19                 3. Is all real property benefitted by

         20  the district included within the district?

         21                 And, 4, is the establishment of the

         22  district in the best interest of the public?

         23                 If the Committee finds in the

         24  affirmative on these four questions, and the number

         25  of objections required to prevent a creation of the
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          2  BID are not filed, then the legislation can be

          3  adopted.

          4                 We have also before us four

          5  resolutions setting discount and late payment

          6  interest rates for prepayment and late payment of

          7  real estate taxes.

          8                 The resolutions reflect the City's

          9  Banking Commission's recommendations for these late

         10  payments, interest rates, as well as the prepayment

         11  discount rate.

         12                 We will now hear from George Glatter

         13  from the Department of Small Business Services, as

         14  well as a panel that will be testifying on the

         15  proposed Fifth Avenue Bayridge BID. But before we

         16  hear from that panel, I'd just like to call upon

         17  Council Member Gentile whose district the Bayridge

         18  Fifth Avenue BID is located, proposed BID is located

         19  for a statement.

         20                 Council Member Gentile.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Thank you,

         22  Mr. Chairman.

         23                 Today is a great day for Bayridge.

         24  With every passing day, we're getting closer and

         25  closer to achieving a very important goal, the
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          2  establishment of the Business Improvement District

          3  along Fifth Avenue.

          4                 In my community we are blessed to

          5  already have an established BID on 86th Street, and

          6  the BIDs really are a quality of life issue. It's

          7  because proprietors care about where their

          8  establishments are located, the owners care about

          9  the relationship they have with our community, and

         10  most importantly, these owners care about being good

         11  neighbors.

         12                 I want to thank the Fifth Avenue

         13  Board of Trade, Basil Capetanakis, Jim Clark, who

         14  are with us today, and everyone from the Board of

         15  Trade who helped make this plan into reality along

         16  with the Small Business Services. Thank you for

         17  that.

         18                 On December 19th, the community board

         19  voted, Community Board 10 voted resolution

         20  recommending approval of this application. City

         21  Planning Commission held a hearing and on February

         22  8th the Commissioner adopted a resolution offering

         23  his unqualified approval to the establishment of the

         24  Fifth Avenue BID.

         25                 I also along with Chair Weprin
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          2  sponsored the resolution that set up this hearing

          3  for today. The next and final step is the proposed

          4  local law that ultimately establish the Fifth Avenue

          5  BID, which Chairman Weprin and I have authored.

          6                 This proposed district has benefitted

          7  just recently from street and roadway

          8  reconstruction, new sidewalks, new roadways, new

          9  additional street lighting and other sidewalk

         10  amenities.

         11                 All those have been done already,

         12  those are completed. I thank everyone involved,

         13  particularly the Mayor, for helping us to get that

         14  done.

         15                 This BID is inundated with a stable

         16  commercial venue of retailers, grocery stores,

         17  banks, restaurants and other types of

         18  establishments, all the way from local mom and pop

         19  shops to national enterprises in chains.

         20                 Certainly the services that the BID

         21  will supply will only increase and add to the

         22  renaissance of Fifth Avenue.

         23                 Mr. Chairman, a new day dawns for

         24  Fifth Avenue. We just saved our local movie theater.

         25  The last movie theater in Bayridge. We just saved
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          2  it, the Alpine Theater, and that's on Fifth Avenue,

          3  that will be an anchor to this new BID.  With this

          4  Reso 339, I believe we take the next step in the

          5  renaissance of Fifth Avenue.

          6                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you,

          8  Council member.

          9                 In addition to George Glatter, if we

         10  can have Thomas Maguire, James Clark and Basil

         11  Capetunakes come up, please, to testify on the

         12  proposed BID. We'll hear from Mr. Glatter first and

         13  then the rest of the panelists.

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GLATTER: Good

         15  morning, Mr. Chairman, members of the Finance

         16  Committee. I'm George Glatter, Assistant

         17  Commissioner at the Department of Small Business

         18  Services. SBS supports the establishment for the

         19  Bayridge Fifth Avenue Business Improvement District

         20  in the Borough of Brooklyn.

         21                 Geographically, the proposed Bayridge

         22  Fifth Avenue BID district extends 20 blocks along

         23  the Fifth Avenue on both sides of the street between

         24  65th and 85th Street.

         25                 Services to be provided in the
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          2  Bayridge Fifth Avenue BID district include

          3  Sanitation, marketing and promotion, beautification,

          4  holiday lighting, public safety, parking

          5  administration, and additional services may be

          6  required for the promotion and enhancement for the

          7  district.

          8                 The Bayridge Fifth Avenue District

          9  Management Association will manage the district. The

         10  budget for the first year of operation is $338,000.

         11                 As required by law, the Bayridge

         12  Fifth Avenue BID Steering Committee mailed a summary

         13  of the City Council resolution to each owner of real

         14  property within the proposed district at the address

         15  shown in the latest City assessment roll.

         16                 For such other persons that are

         17  registered with the City to receive tax bills

         18  concerning real property within a district, and to

         19  tenants of each building within the proposed

         20  district.

         21                 In addition, SBS arranged for the

         22  publication of a copy of a summary of the resolution

         23  at least once in the City Record. Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you, Mr.

         25  Glatter.
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          2                 MR. CLARK: Good morning. My name is

          3  Jim Clark.  I am the Chairperson of the Bayridge

          4  Fifth Avenue Steering Committee. We started in

          5  December of 2004 with three people. By February of

          6  2005 we had 12 on the Committee. As of today, we now

          7  have 40 people serving on the Steering Committee, on

          8  the Advisory Committee for the BID.

          9                 This BID has been informally endorsed

         10  by our local Councilman Vincent Gentile, and also

         11  the other elected officials who serve Bayridge.

         12                 We have been interviewed on news

         13  channel 12. We have been interviewed by the Brooklyn

         14  Cable of Time Warner. We have been in the

         15  newspapers, the Bayridge Courier, the Bayridge Home

         16  Reporter, the Bayridge Paper and the Brooklyn

         17  Spectator, for a total of 18 articles in addition to

         18  all the mailings.

         19                 We held 21 separate meetings, both

         20  morning, noon and evening so that everybody would

         21  have an opportunity to speak about the Business

         22  Improvement District.

         23                 In addition to which the Board of

         24  Trade, the Fifth Avenue Board of Trade spent money

         25  advertising the BID to let people know they could
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          2  come to a meeting, or they can ask us questions or

          3  whatever, and I sincerely request that you consider

          4  our approval.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 MR. CAPETANAKES: Basil Capetanakes.

          7  I'm the President of Fifth Avenue Board of Trade.

          8  I'm also property owner and businessman at the

          9  Avenue.

         10                 Fifth Avenue underwent an extensive

         11  reconstruction about two years ago. It looks

         12  beautiful, but we need the improvement of the area

         13  in order to keep the beautiful improvements alive

         14  and increasing.

         15                 We were able to save the theater,

         16  that it was the backbone of the area, especially a

         17  part of Bayridge. By doing so, we'll be able to

         18  revitalize the area, and also bring back the old

         19  time business activity that has persisted Bayridge

         20  for the past years.

         21                 I thank you for having us here today,

         22  and I would like to ask you to approve the proposal.

         23  Thank you.

         24                 MR. MAGUIRE: Good morning. My name is

         25  Tom Maguire. I'm a property owner and a business

                                                            16

          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2  owner. The proposed BID, the proposed Bayridge BID

          3  starts at 65th Street and ends at 85th Street. The

          4  successful Sunset Park BID ends at 65th Street, and

          5  the Bayridge 86th Street BID starts at 85th Street.

          6                 The proposed BID services for the

          7  Bayridge Avenue BID are as follows: Supplement

          8  sanitation seven days a week, eight hours a day. We

          9  have hospitality and public safety, uniformed

         10  private safety patrols to ensure a safe environment

         11  for all merchants and shoppers.

         12                 Special events, marketing, promotion,

         13  festival sale days, parades, public promotion, web

         14  site, et cetera. The sidewalk amenities will be tree

         15  planting, flower pots and street furniture.

         16  Commercial vacancy reduction activity will solicit

         17  new businesses to join Fifth Avenue. The BID is a

         18  fantastic opportunity to sustain and continue growth

         19  on Fifth Avenue.

         20                 I'm asking you for your approval.

         21  Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you. We've

         23  been joined by some more colleagues. We have Council

         24  Member Oliver Koppell from the Bronx, Council Member

         25  Mike McMahon from Staten Island.
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          2                 Is that where you're from, Staten

          3  Island?

          4                 Council Member Gale Brewer from

          5  Manhattan. Council Member Diana Reyna from Brooklyn

          6  and Queens, and I saw Councilman Alan Gerson from

          7  Manhattan around here somewhere.

          8                 Any questions for any of these

          9  panelists?

         10                 Council Member Gentile.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Just quickly,

         12  I know we have a long agenda today, Mr. Chairman.

         13                 I'm just curious now, this new BID

         14  will actually touch upon the 86th Street BID on the

         15  far end; am I correct?

         16                 MR. CLARK: Correct, we will dovetail

         17  with Sunset Park BID which ends at 65th Street -- we

         18  begin there, and we end at 85th where the 86th

         19  Street BID begins.

         20                 It's one long, very long BID.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: So, it could

         22  be a commercial corridor, as far as from Sunset Park

         23  all the way to 86th Street.

         24                 MR. CLARK: From 39th Street to 86th

         25  Street will be a BID -- to 88th Street, I'm sorry.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: And do you

          3  foresee combined activities with the other BIDs?

          4                 MR. CLARK: Well, it's too early in

          5  the game.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Too early in

          7  the game, okay.

          8                 I'm thinking ahead.

          9                 MR. CLARK: We have to get our feet

         10  wet first.

         11                 MR. CAPETANAKES: Both BIDs are very

         12  helpful to us, and we are looking to work together

         13  in the future.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: That's great.

         15                 MR. CAPETANAKES: On the advisory

         16  level, we need to know how to do things, make

         17  proposals and all.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: I know the

         19  long hours, many days and many months you've put

         20  into this, and I appreciate all your effort. And

         21  congratulations.

         22                 MR. CAPETANAKES: We want to thank you

         23  for your support, Councilman.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Any other

         25  questions? Gentlemen, thank you very much.
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          2                 We will now hear from Nadine Felton

          3  from the Finance Division who will testify on the

          4  Banking Commission Resolution and answer any

          5  questions any members may have.

          6                 Is Ms. Felton in the house? And we

          7  also have representatives from the Department of

          8  Finance, would you come up? Why don't you come up.

          9                 I just ask before you talk into the

         10  record to just identify yourselves with names and

         11  titles.

         12                 MR. LEE: Robert Lee, Deputy

         13  Commissioner of Department of Finance.

         14                 MR. MILLER: Sam Miller, Assistant

         15  Commissioner, Department of Finance.

         16                 MS. FELTON: I'm Nadine Felton,

         17  Assistant Director, Council Finance Division.

         18                 And just to give you an overview,

         19  what you have before us are four resolutions.

         20  They're the recommendations submitted to the Council

         21  from the Banking Commission and Mr. Lee, for the

         22  late payment of interest rates on property taxes and

         23  water and sewer charges, and also the resolution on

         24  the discount rate for prepayment, early payment of

         25  property taxes.
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          2                 The discount rate recommended was 1.5

          3  percent, which was the one recommended last year for

          4  early payment. And the interest rates on late

          5  payment of property taxes and water and sewer are

          6  the same ones that have been recommended. I think

          7  that's about 1979, I think. It's nine percent for

          8  those properties with an assessed value of 80,000 or

          9  less, and that includes assessed value of co-op and

         10  condo per unit, not the co-op building, and for

         11  those properties with assessed value of more than

         12  80,000, the interest rate is 18 percent for both

         13  property taxes and water and sewer rates.

         14                 And just to remind people, we did a

         15  whole big overhaul of the prepayment, the payment

         16  provisions last year, with the cooperation of the

         17  Department of Finance, the Administration and the

         18  Council, and we increased the threshold considerably

         19  for those properties that would fall into being

         20  charged the lowest rate if they were late in their

         21  payments.

         22                 So, now I believe practically all

         23  one-, two-, and three-family homes would fall into

         24  the category of a lower, the lower interest rate for

         25  late payment. Most co-ops and condo units, I think
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          2  they may even have a more definitive number on that,

          3  Sam Miller may, and quite a number of commercial

          4  properties, small businesses, I think more than a

          5  third, would now fall under the 80,000.

          6  Eighty-thousand also is the threshold for

          7  determining how often you pay, whether if you're

          8  over 80,000, you pay on a half-year basis, and if

          9  you're under 80,000, you pay on a quarterly basis,

         10  and it also affects the prepayment discount to that

         11  as well.

         12                 I think we're obviously open to any

         13  questions, the Department of Finance people also.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Would the

         15  Department of Finance like to add anything to that?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LEE: Percent is

         17  quite accurate.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay. Any

         19  questions?

         20                 Council Member Brewer.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: How many, I

         22  guess by number perhaps just generally the small

         23  businesses, a third, how many is that that fall into

         24  the late payment category? Do you have any sense of

         25  that?
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          2                 MS. FELTON: Yes, I have from last

          3  year's distribution there were, I think there were

          4  39 percent or 30,000.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:

          6  Thirty-thousand that fall into the late payment?

          7                 MS. FELTON: Yes.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay. And this

          9  would be more for Finance.

         10                 Is that something, that kind of

         11  information that goes to the Department of Small

         12  Business Services for assistance, or is it done

         13  through Finance, in terms of any questions?

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MILLER: In

         15  terms of letting Small Business Services know about

         16  problems --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Yes. I mean,

         18  obviously we all try to support small business, and

         19  it's not easy, we all know, to be a small business

         20  in this City. So, if one gets behind in one's rent,

         21  and one's taxes, is there some support? Maybe it's

         22  something that can't be fixed, but maybe it can.

         23                 In other words, is there an identity

         24  that could be supported by Small Business Services?

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MILLER: I
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          2  think the answer probably is yes. I don't know of

          3  any effort that we're doing now, but you're

          4  mentioning that reminds me that we've been working,

          5  our Collections Division has been working on ways to

          6  reach out to owners of all kinds, you know before,

          7  we talked about reaching people before the tax lien

          8  sale, before they're eligible for a tax lien. This

          9  would be a similar kind of outreach or a cooperative

         10  effort we might be able to do with Small Business

         11  Services.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Right. Mr.

         13  Chairman, that might be something that the Council,

         14  not necessarily your Committee, but could help

         15  facilitate.

         16                 Thank you very much.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: No problem.

         18  Council Member Sears.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you. This

         20  may have been covered, I just don't remember.

         21                 What is the time frame, if you have

         22  the 18 percent, that's from what period to what

         23  period? And does it stay like 30 days, 90 days, 120

         24  days?

         25                 MS. FELTON: When you begin being
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          2  charged?

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Yes.

          4                 In other words, if it's 18 percent

          5  does it stay that way whether it's 30 days, 90 days,

          6  120 days?

          7                 MS. FELTON: It's compounded daily.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: It's compounded

          9  daily.

         10                 MS. FELTON: Yes.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: For how long

         12  until something --

         13                 MS. FELTON: Until it's paid up.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Or until a lien

         15  is imposed? What is the time frame for that?

         16                 MS. FELTON: Oh, the lien sale?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: I mean, how

         18  long do they have to actually pay before some action

         19  is taken?

         20                 MS. FELTON: The qualifications for

         21  the eligibility for inclusion and the City's tax

         22  lien sale for the Class 1, the one-, two-, and

         23  three-family homes, it's three years in arrears in

         24  property taxes.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: And for the
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          2  commercial area?

          3                 MS. FELTON: Commercial it's one year.

          4  Rentals it's one year, and for Class 2 co-ops and

          5  condos it's three years.

          6                 So, in other words, three years for

          7  the home owners and it's one year for the

          8  commercial.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: And that's

         10  compounded daily until they pay that 18 percent?

         11                 MS. FELTON: Yes.

         12                 It's compounded daily until they pay

         13  up in full.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Yes.

         15                 MS. FELTON: Yes. That's my

         16  understanding.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: All right,

         18  thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: We've been joined

         20  by Councilman Gennaro from Queens.

         21                 Are you finished? Okay, Council

         22  Member Comrie.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Just a

         24  question on the 18 percent compounded daily. Under

         25  what circumstances can that be weighed?
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LEE: I think

          3  legally we cannot weigh interest charges at all.

          4                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MILLER: But

          5  what we do, and this was part of the legislation

          6  that you helped us pass last year, when we find, for

          7  instance, that we have misapplied a payment, you

          8  know, Bobbie sends a payment in but it's applied to

          9  my account and Finance discovers that two years

         10  later, we open that charge. We don't go back and

         11  charge Bobby two years of interest because the

         12  Finance Department made the mistake and applied it

         13  to my account. What we say is we don't impose the

         14  interest in that case. So, we have that flexibility.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: What if it's a

         16  senior citizen that had their mortgage reassigned to

         17  a secondary or tertiary broker and they didn't know

         18  that the payments were being continued?

         19                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MILLER: That's

         20  another case where if it seems that we didn't send

         21  the bill to the right place, we can also not impose

         22  interest in those cases.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And what if

         24  persons have an inability to pay if they've been a

         25  long-term homeowner?
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          2                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MILLER: We're

          3  not allowed to impose interest for hardship. We do,

          4  in some cases, remove properties from the lien sale

          5  in cases of hardship, but on day-to-day interest

          6  accruing because of failure to pay, we don't do

          7  that.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: So, if a

          9  person owns a property for 30 years and they have

         10  fallen, their spouse has passed or they've had a

         11  loss of income, and that property is the only thing

         12  they have left, there's no ability to make some

         13  allowances?

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MILLER: We

         15  would allow for a payment agreement for people. We

         16  do that for people to pay a percentage of it down

         17  and then enter an installment agreement with us. And

         18  we would also in those cases, as you know, our

         19  outreach group would work to try to help that

         20  homeowner meet with somebody from HPD perhaps to

         21  talk about some kind of a loan program that might be

         22  helpful to the homeowner.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I thought we

         24  had created a better mechanism for that last year to

         25  deal with those types of scenarios; isn't that
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          2  something that the Department is working on. I know

          3  that you've done better outreach with the lien

          4  sales, and I believe you've done better outreach

          5  with reaching out to the network of programs or CBOs

          6  that could help with people in that situation. I

          7  hope that, maybe not prepared to talk about it now,

          8  but I think that's something we need to discuss and

          9  further make plain to the public, but I was hoping

         10  you'd be able to elucidate at this point.

         11                 You know, one of my problems in my

         12  district is that I have a lot of senior home owners

         13  that can't afford the assessment, because right now

         14  the assessment is going to cost another $60 in taxes

         15  to the average single-family home owner, plus the

         16  property tax, it's going to cost another $200 to the

         17  average person, that the seniors are not getting

         18  that kind of money in their Social Security

         19  increase, they're not getting $200 in their Social

         20  Security increase. I've got a lot of people that are

         21  getting squeezed out of their own properties. I

         22  think it's something that we need to take a look at.

         23                 I know Councilman Fidler and I were

         24  trying to push an extra senior tax exemption this

         25  year to try and get seniors a credit, but we really
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          2  need to start looking at other ways that the City

          3  can step in and once they do an overall holistic

          4  assessment of a person's ability to pay, find some

          5  other way to make a waiver.

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MILLER: I'd be

          7  happy to do that, and I think we should pull HPD in

          8  as well, since they're the agency that have a lot of

          9  those programs. I'm happy to work with you and them

         10  to do that.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay, thank

         12  you.

         13                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you,

         15  Council member.

         16                 If there are no other questions --

         17  oh, Council Member Gerson, Alan Gerson.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: I just want to

         19  actually, Councilman Comrie asked the question, I

         20  just want to be associated with his remark that I

         21  think as part of that I believe a necessary overall

         22  or review of our property tax system, I think we

         23  need to figure out a way to better deal with and be

         24  cognizant of the folks who are, as they say,

         25  property rich but cash poor. I don't think we want

                                                            30

          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2  to force seniors or other folks who are struggling

          3  out of properties of long-standing, because of

          4  changes in their property evaluation. Maybe because

          5  they helped build up the neighborhoods even.

          6                 So, I think we need to look at our

          7  property tax system for simplicity for equity and

          8  also for compassion for folks who are in these

          9  situations.

         10                 So, I just wanted to thank Council

         11  Member Comrie for emphasizing that and be associated

         12  with his point.

         13                 Just one quick question. These

         14  recommendations come from the Banking Commission;

         15  could you for the record, if you haven't done so

         16  already, because I had to step out briefly, who is

         17  on the Banking Commission, and just a brief synopsis

         18  of its status for the record?

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LEE: Okay. The

         20  Banking Commission, comprised of the Mayor, the

         21  Comptroller Thompson, Commissioner of Finance Martha

         22  E. Stark, and I act as the Secretary.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Thank you very

         24  much.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: If I could ask
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          2  members not to leave until we take a vote, because

          3  we have a floating quorum, and we're back to a

          4  quorum.

          5                 Any other questions? If not, I'm

          6  going to couple the following resolutions: One

          7  preconsidered Intro establishing Retiree Health

          8  Benefits Trust Fund.

          9                 Four preconsidered Banking Commission

         10  resolutions: The first one being to establish a

         11  discount rate on early payment; second, to establish

         12  a nine percent interest rate, the late payment on

         13  small properties; third, to establish an 18 percent

         14  interest rate for late payment on larger property;

         15  fourth, an interest rate on water and sewer rents,

         16  and a preconsidered resolution calling upon the

         17  State to exempt health care benefits for domestic

         18  partners from City and State taxes.

         19                 Call the roll.

         20                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Weprin.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Aye on all.

         22                 COUNCIL CLERK: Reyna.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Aye on all.

         24                 COUNCIL CLERK: Brewer.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Aye on all.
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          2  But I do hope that we can work on assessment issues

          3  and certainly small business. Those that are

          4  legitimately trying to pay their taxes, and to get

          5  some support for doing such. Thank you.

          6                 COUNCIL CLERK: Comrie.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I'd like to

          8  vote aye on all with the issues that I raised

          9  earlier.

         10                 I want to congratulate, actually, the

         11  Mayor's Office and the Finance Office for creating

         12  the senior citizens, the Retiree Health Benefits

         13  Trust Fund and taking that first step towards

         14  dealing with a system that's going to become a real

         15  problem in the next few years. And to the Finance

         16  staff for protecting it and making sure that that

         17  trust fund will be dealt as a trust fund, and not be

         18  moved into something else.

         19                 So, with that, I want to congratulate

         20  all of the parties that were involved in those

         21  negotiations.

         22                 And I still want to continue to add

         23  the issues of trying to help people that have been

         24  part of this City, but due to no fault of their own

         25  they're finding themselves squeezed out.
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          2                 With that, I vote aye on all.

          3                 COUNCIL CLERK: DeBlasio.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER DeBLASIO: Yes on all.

          5                 COUNCIL CLERK: Fidler.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: I want to vote

          7  aye on all, and I also want to underscore the

          8  comments of Council Members Comrie and Gerson,

          9  particularly as it relates to seniors who are being

         10  squeezed out. We will consider that an unpaid

         11  political advertisement for the rebate plan.

         12                 Aye on all.

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK: Gennaro.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Yes.

         15                 COUNCIL CLERK: Gerson.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Aye on all.

         17                 COUNCIL CLERK: Gioia.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: I'd like to

         19  vote yes on all, and I'd like to congratulate

         20  Council Member Gentile on the new BID in his

         21  district, and also to commend Council Member Comrie

         22  for his accurate and important remarks on seniors.

         23                 COUNCIL CLERK: Jackson.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Aye on all.

         25                 COUNCIL CLERK: Koppell.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Aye on all.

          3                 COUNCIL CLERK: McMahon.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: I vote aye on

          5  all. Thank you.

          6                 COUNCIL CLERK: Sears.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Aye on all.

          8                 COUNCIL CLERK: Gentile.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Aye on all.

         10                 COUNCIL CLERK: Baez.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BAEZ: Aye on all.

         12                 COUNCIL CLERK: Oddo.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: No on the

         14  preconsidered reso regarding domestic partnership,

         15  and yes on the others.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Yes, announce the

         17  results.

         18                 COUNCIL CLERK: By a vote of 16 in the

         19  affirmative, zero in the negative, no abstentions,

         20  all items are adopted, with the exception of

         21  preconsidered reso, which is adopted by a vote of 15

         22  in the affirmative, one in the negative, no

         23  abstentions.

         24                 Council Members, please sign the

         25  Committee reports.
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          2                 Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Yes, I'm going to

          4  keep the roll open for a reasonable period of time

          5  for those members that are around the building to

          6  vote. And I'm going to recess this meeting, rather

          7  than adjourn it, until after the budget is

          8  completed.

          9                 We're now in recess.

         10                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member

         11  Vallone.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: On advice of

         13  the Chair, I vote aye on all.

         14                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Vann.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: Aye on all.

         16                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Rivera.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: I vote aye.

         18                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member

         19  Gallagher.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: Aye on all

         21  coupled General Orders, with the exception of

         22  preconsidered resolution dealing with the domestic

         23  partnership issue, in which I vote no.

         24                 COUNCIL CLERK: The vote on the

         25  Committee on Finance now currently stands at 20 in
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          2  the affirmative, zero in the negative, no

          3  abstentions, with the exception of preconsidered

          4  resolution in relation to domestic partnership,

          5  which now stands at 18 in the affirmative, two in

          6  the negative, and zero abstentions. Thank you.

          7                 (Subsequently Council Member Yassky

          8  voted aye.)

          9                 (Hearing recessed at 12:20 p.m.)
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